Planning & Transportation Commission

Meeting of April 26, 2006

RE: 3401, 3415, and 3445 Alma Street (Alma Plaza) [06PLN-00020]

April 26, 2006

Dear PT&C Commissioners:

This letter addresses my concerns about the proposed redevelopment of Alma Plaza.

We have long argued for a revitalized Alma Plaza center with a moderately-sized full-service grocery store flanked by small retail.  This would be a major asset to the neighborhood. We are one voice in this regard.

The applicant has expressed a willingness to listen to the community and for that he needs to be commended.  The plan on the table is a great starting point.  However, I have comments along the following lines:

· The retail studies being cited by the developer are either too old or too open to multiple interpretations to be of value.
· Contrary to the developer’s assertion that there is an “abundance” of retail, there is a paucity of retail services for the neighborhoods surrounding Alma Plaza.
· There is a need for explicit numbers as to “actual” selling floor footage of the retail complex.
· Parking requirements must respect the surrounding neighborhood.
· There is a need for an EIR to examine impacts to traffic, circulation, infrastructure, etc.
1.  The applicant claims that the Retail Studies spanning 1988 to 2005 support the argument that Alma is not a viable sales generating site. This is very curious, given that the applicant (and his predecessors) have argued for 15 years that this site was IDEAL for a robust retail presence. How is it possible that these same studies now support the opposite conclusion?

As evidence of the site’s lack of viability, the applicant points to the sharp dip evident in the sales figures for 1990 and 1992. However, the analysis fails to account for 3 major events in the history of Alma Plaza. Toward the end of 1989, the gas station closed for environmental reasons. In 1993, Garner's bike shop closed and moved to Town and Country.  The fall of sales tax revenues in CY 1993 is consistent with this event.

Moreover, the decline in revenue for the site from 1993 to date is clearly due to the fact that the retail space at Alma Plaza had been withdrawn from the marketplace.  No re-renting took place and no capital investment of any sort was made.  Tenants were, in fact, actively encouraged to move out of Alma Plaza. So the decline in sales is NOT due to economic factors, to the desire of Pal Altans to shop elsewhere or the decline of Alma Plaza.

2. The applicant argues that there is an abundance of existing retail in the surrounding area and so a robust retail presence at Alma COULD NOT be justified.  He does this by presenting a Map of Abundance of the area potentially served by a revitalized Alma Plaza.

However, the applicant is presenting a highly restrictive context which ranges from Loma Verde to Charleston and from Alma to Middlefield.  If we put Alma Plaza in a broader City-wide context, say from Embarcadero to San Antonio and from Bol Park to 101, we suddenly have a very different perspective because of the very different, and more appropriate, context.  For example, the applicant fails to include the largest neighborhood in south Palo Alto, Barron Park, the very neighborhood that has been so supportive over the years for a large store at Alma.  This is a vast neighborhood with absolutely NO retail presence.  If you include this neighborhood (as well as Ventura) in your Map of Abundance, it is quickly transformed to a Map of Paucity, arguing strongly for more, not less, retail at Alma.  The addition of new housing at the Bridge/Jewish Community Center, Hyatt, Elks and other projects will only make that lack more acute.

A member of our neighborhood will be presenting this Map at the Planning Commission. 
3.  The Staff Report to Planning is bit unclear on exactly how much retail floor space will actually be devoted to selling both for the total retail complex and for the grocery store, rather than storage, refrigeration, or basement.  If a store is 8,000 sq feet, yet 40% is devoted to storage and refrigeration, then there will be at most 4,800 sq feet of actual customer accessible floor area.  This information must be made explicit, for it is this "accessible floor area" that we care about.  We believe that a grocery store with 12-15,000 sq feet of "actual" selling floor area should do the job.  This would equate to a store with a footprint of 16,000 to 19,000 square feet.  The accessible floor space for the adjoining small retail shops (5-6 in number) should be calculated similarly.  

4.  We may quibble over whether the owner of Alma Plaza is required by law to address the planned parking deficit at Stanford Villa Apartments, but the fact is that these cars exist and they will need to park somewhere.  For 50+ years, they have parked at Alma due an agreement established at the dawn of this site.  When those parking spaces withdrawn, where will those cars park?  Alma is off limits.  The same is true of East Meadow.  El Verano is a city block away.  Ramona is available.  But employing Ramona as a parking lot is not going to sit well with the neighborhood. Moreover, on a good night there are at most 27 spaces available.

Alma Plaza must be self-parked. The current plan does not account for this parking deficit.  Whether the owner is legally responsible to address this deficit is not the issue and does not concern the residents of this area.  What does concern us is where those cars will park if the site is not designed to accommodate them.

5.  Impacts to the surrounding community.  This may be the most troubling aspect of the proposal.  The Staff Report has nothing resembling an "(Environmental) Impact Section." I understand that an EIR will be required for this project after the screening phase, but for this phase one would expect at least an initial analysis of the impact of the project, to provide some direction to the applicant going forward.
For example, what is the traffic impact?  The traffic study included in the applicant's submission ignored the impact of the traffic generated by the Stanford Villa Apartments. The left turn facility at Alma Plaza has always existed for both Alma Plaza and the Stanford Villa Apartments. If the Apartments are going to be excluded, then we need to consider what other cuts are going to need to be made in the Alma Street median so as to allow ingress and egress to the apartment complex. We also need to consider whether or not there will be increased traffic accidents because of the additional median cuts.

What is the impact to the City's infrastructure by adding another 60 homes to the existing housing element?  What is the impact of adding another 52 new students to the PA school system on top of the additions due to the other housing projects already in the pipeline?  What is the impact of 67 cars that will no longer be able to park at Alma?  The answers to these questions could all have considerable impact on the project.

We welcome everyone to our neighborhood and want to see a reasonable project move forward that incorporates retail and housing. But this particular plan relies much too heavily on housing, without adequate retail services to serve the community, and raises many questions about potential impacts that need to be addressed.

Thank you for your consideration,

Jay Hammer

3512 Ramona St

